

# PICKLEWEED ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS

## ARTICLE I. NAME AND PURPOSE

**Section 1.1. Name.** The name of this body shall be the City of San Rafael Pickleweed Advisory Committee, hereinafter referred to as the "Pickleweed Advisory Committee," or the "Committee."

**Section 1.2. Purpose.** The Pickleweed Advisory Committee provides valuable input in representing and advocating for Canal area resident's needs and wishes for programs and services; and is a primary public networking resource between the Canal residents, representatives from governmental and non-profit agencies, and others. The Pickleweed Advisory Committee works in conjunction with the City of San Rafael.

**Section 1.3. Committee Responsibility.** The Pickleweed Advisory Committee's responsibilities shall be in accord with these Bylaws, as amended from time-to-time by the City Council. The Pickleweed Advisory Committee's authority is advisory only. The Pickleweed Advisory Committee has no power to act on behalf of the City of San Rafael or any other entity.

The duties of the Pickleweed Advisory Committee shall include the following:

1. The Advisory Committee shall be responsible for advising the Park and Recreation Commission, City Council and City Staff on all matters pertaining to the facilities, programs and services of the Albert J. Boro Community Center and Pickleweed Park;
2. As needed, make recommendations on policies and procedures governing the use of the Albert J. Boro Community Center and Pickleweed Park in accordance with the mission of the City of San Rafael;
3. Assist the City with reviewing and evaluating "Use Agreements for Co-Sponsored Programming" at the Albert J. Boro Community Center and Pickleweed Community Park;
4. Promote the use and support of the Albert J. Boro Community Center and Pickleweed Park within Canal area neighborhood, including working in cooperation with citizen and business organizations, foundations, school districts and other governmental agencies.
5. The Committee shall have no authority to direct, nor shall it direct, City staff, officials or volunteers;

**Section 1.4. Brown Act.** All meetings of the Pickleweed Advisory Committee shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the Pickleweed Advisory Committee, except as otherwise provided in Government Code Section 54952.

## ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP

**Section 2.1. Number of Members.** The Pickleweed Advisory Committee shall consist of a total of ten (10) members as follows: seven (7) voting members, one (1) alternate member, one (1) non-voting representative from the Park and Recreation Commission and one (1) non-voting City staff member who will act as the Committee Chairperson. The City staff member will typically be the Albert J. Boro site supervisor, but in all instances shall be appointed by the City Manager.

**Section 2.2. Eligibility.** The Committee shall be composed of seven (7) regular voting members which may include up to two (2) youth members, plus one (1) alternate member. Each shall have the same duties and responsibilities and shall consist of the following:

1. Members of the Committee shall be at least 18 years of age, except for the youth members who shall be a minimum age of a high school 9<sup>th</sup> grade student
2. At least six (6) regular voting members of the Committee shall reside within the Canal neighborhood
3. One (1) member of the Committee must be a City of San Rafael resident but may reside outside of the Canal neighborhood.

**Section 2.4. Appointment of Committee Members.** With exception of the representative of the Park and Recreation Commission and City staff, all other regular voting members and alternate member shall be appointed by the City Council. Appointments shall be published on the website for the City of San Rafael in accordance with Government Code Section 54973, as amended from time to time. The representative from the Park and Recreation Commission will be selected by the Park and Recreation Commission on an annual basis.

**Section 2.5. Terms of Appointment.** With exception of the representative from the Park and Recreation Commission, each Committee member shall serve a minimum term of four (4) years but not more than two consecutive terms. However, if there is a vacancy on the Committee, the City Council has the authority to extend a current Committee member's term at their discretion. Members may also reapply to Committee following an absence of at least one term. An effort will be made to ensure that the terms are staggered, and not all of the appointments expire in the same year. A Committee member whose term is expiring should notify the Chairperson at least thirty (30) days before the end of his/her term whether he/she wishes to continue his/her membership.

The representative from the Park and Recreation Commission shall serve a term of one (1) year, but not more than two consecutive terms. However, if there is a vacancy, the Park and Recreation Commission has the authority to extend the current representative's term at their discretion.

**Section 2.6. Resignation.** All resignations from the Pickleweed Advisory Committee shall be submitted in writing to the Chairperson. The resigning Committee member should provide as much notice as possible.

**Section 2.7. Absence and Removal.** Attendance at any regularly scheduled meeting is a necessary part of being an effective Committee member. If a member is unable to attend a regularly scheduled meeting, the member should notify the Chairperson at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of a regularly scheduled meeting to have an excused absence. An unexcused absence from two (2) consecutive Pickleweed Advisory Committee meetings without notification to the Chairperson, or six absences (whether excused or unexcused) in any term, shall result in immediate removal from membership on the Committee. Previously dismissed Committee members may be eligible for reappointment to the Committee in accordance with Section 2.4.

**Section 2.8. Vacancies.** Vacancies, no matter how arising, shall be published on the website for the City of San Rafael in accordance with Government Code Section 54973, as amended from time to time.

**Section 2.9. Compensation.** Committee members serve without compensation.

**Section 2.10. Duties of the Chairperson.** The Chairperson shall preside over all Pickleweed Advisory Committee meetings and shall be responsible for preparing agendas and meeting minutes. If the Chairperson is unable to attend a regularly scheduled meeting, the regularly scheduled meeting shall be cancelled and resumed at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

### **ARTICLE III. MEETINGS**

**Section 3.1. Time and date of Regular Meeting.** Notification of meeting place, date, and time shall be rendered to the public through posting on the City of San Rafael website. A minimum of five (5) meetings shall be scheduled annually, on a consistent day of the month; the schedule for the upcoming year will be set by November of the previous year; staff will contact the Committee one week prior to scheduled meetings to determine if a quorum will be present; lack of quorum will result in the cancellation of the scheduled meeting.

**Section 3.2. Agenda.** Items may be placed on the agenda by the Chairperson or at the request of a member if approved by the Chairperson. The Chairperson will be responsible for preparing an agenda item cover sheet and for the initial presentation at the meeting. Items to be included on the agenda should be submitted to the Chairperson no later than two weeks before the scheduled Committee meeting; lack of agenda items will result in the cancellation of the scheduled meeting. Agenda packets for regular meetings will be provided to the Committee members at least three (3) business days before the scheduled meeting.

**Section 3.3. Special Meetings.** Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson.

**Section 3.4. Quorum.** Four (4) voting members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any regular or special meeting of the Pickleweed Advisory Committee.

**Section 3.5. Voting.** A majority vote of those present and constituting a quorum shall be required to agree to any business of the Committee, including making any input that will be presented to the City Council, City Manager or Library and Recreation Director provided that any Committee member who abstains due to a legal conflict of interest shall not be counted in determining the existence of a quorum or a majority vote.

The Alternate Member serves only in the absence of a voting member. When a voting Committee member is absent from a regularly scheduled meeting, the Chair shall call upon an alternate to be seated at the table to participate in a voting role at the meeting. If a regular voting Committee member arrives subsequently, that person shall not participate as a voting member.

**Section 3.6. Public Participation.** All meetings of the Pickleweed Advisory Committee shall be open to the public. Meetings will be accessible to all, with accommodations for accessibility issues made upon request. Any person who disrupts the meeting may be asked to leave and be removed.

#### **ARTICLE IV. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT**

**Section 4.1. Effective Date.** The Bylaws shall become effective immediately upon a majority vote of approval by the City Council.

**Section 4.2. Amendments.** These Bylaws may be amended by majority vote of the City Council at any regular meeting of the City Council. All proposed amendments to the Bylaws shall be made available to the membership at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which the City Council will vote on the proposed changes. The effective date of the amendment shall become effective immediately upon a majority vote of approval by the City Council.